
 
page 1 of 6 

  
 

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS AND SAFETY MINUTES  
May 9, 2006 

 
 
 
The Board of Public Works and Safety of the City of West Lafayette, Indiana met in regular 
session in the Board of Works Room at City Hall on May 9, 2006, at 11:00 a.m.  Present were 
Janet L. Broyles, Gilbert T. Satterly, and Mayor Mills, who presided.  
 
Bid Opening: Sagamore West Street Light Project – Engineering 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes opened three bids for the Sagamore West Street Light Project.  
 
Mayor Mills read the bids aloud: 

Bidder Wiring & Lighting Underground Pathway 
ElectriCom, Inc.  $  87,856.00 
James H. Drew Corp. $433,376.00 $136,922.00 
Trans Tech Electric, L. P. $364,520.00 $164,560.00 

 
 
Quote: State Street Lift Station Drive Reconstruction – Engineering 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes opened four quotes for the State Street Lift Station Drive 
Reconstruction.  
 
Mayor Mills read the bids aloud: 

Quote from Amount 
R. W. Davis Contracting, Inc. $29,141.37 
Rieth-Riley Construction Co., Inc. $35,421.42 
Fairfield Contractors, Inc.  $21,725.00 
Milestone Contractors, L.P. $37,700.00 

 
Mayor Mills said thank you.  We appreciate those bids. 
 
Agreement:  Robert S. (BoB) Ross, Executive Consultant – Training – Police 
Deputy Police Chief Walker said Chief Marvin requests that the Board of Works approve us 
to enter into a consultant fee for training at the Police Department. 
 
Ms. Broyles said I move that we approve the proposal for the consultant fee structure from 
West Lafayette Police Department.  The amount is $4,125.00 [A. Ongoing Consultation 
Services; B. Assessment/Diagnostic Research; C. Facilitate Training Sessions (two initial 
modules, “Ethics and Professionalism,” two one-day sessions, and training material 
development and other writing activities)], and the consultant is Robert Ross.  Motion was 
seconded by Mr. Satterly, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Information for Board: Next Park Board Meeting – Parks 
Parks Superintendent Payne said no business, but I’d like to announce the Park Board will be 
meeting Monday at 4:30 at Lilly Nature Center, rather than here. 
 
Bid Acceptance: Brown Equipment Co., Inc. – 2006 Three-Wheel Mechanical Street Sweeper 
– Street 
Public Works Director Downey said the Board received bid specifications for a new street 
sweeper.  The total price was $140,455, but we offered a trade-in, a 1994 Johnson street 
sweeper trade-in [VIN #1JSVM3H40RC041066], so we’re able to deduct $15,000 from that. 
They also offered some other deductibles, which I prefer not to take those out, so I would 

Internet
Text Box
Approved at the May 16, 2006, Board of Works meeting.



 
 
 

BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, MAY 9, 2006, CONTINUED 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 2 of 6 

recommend to the Board that we accept the bid, minus the trade-in, for $125,455.  That is the 
same sweeper that we bought almost two years ago for $750.  We bought two of them for 
$1,500 out of East Chicago— 
 
Mr. Satterly said and they were used. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said yes, they were used.  We kept them running for a while, 
and we’re still going to trade that one in. 
 
Mayor Mills said he’s getting pretty good deal. 
 
Mr. Satterly said I move we approve the purchase of the street sweeper from Brown 
Equipment for $125,455.  Motion was seconded by Ms. Broyles, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Bid Announcement: Screenings, Washer, Grinder, and Compactor – WWTU 
Public Works Director Downey said I would also ask the Board to consider the specifications 
for a new screening grinder, compactor.  We only specified as you see it.  This is for the West 
Lafayette Wastewater Department.  I would like the Board to accept those specifications and 
select a bid opening date and advertising bids, as provided by Judy [Clerk-Treasurer 
Rhodes]. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said the earliest we could do this would be May 19 and May 26 for 
advertising, with bid opening on June 6. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said now I know I didn’t give you that information on Friday, so 
if you wish to delay it a week, that’s fine.  The present screener compactor has been out of 
service now for about six, eight weeks.  What that does, is it leaves a lot of water in the 
screens that goes to the landfill, and it’s costing us quite a bit of money, plus it’s kind of soupy 
to handle, and it does cause difficulties in transporting.  All that material has to go directly to 
the landfill in Logansport.  We cannot take it to the transfer station, they will not accept it.  It’s 
real sloppy.  It’s uncomfortable to handle. 
 
Ms. Broyles said I move that we approve the specifications for the screenings washer, 
grinder, and compactor for the Wastewater Treatment Utility, and set advertising dates at 
May 19 and 26, and the bid opening date of June 6. 
 
Mr. Satterly said there’s no Board of Works meeting on June 6. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said there’s not? 
 
Mayor Mills said it’s been cancelled. 
 
Mr. Satterly said that’s what I have. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said are we moving it to the 7th? 
 



 
 
 

BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, MAY 9, 2006, CONTINUED 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 3 of 6 

Mr. Satterly said it’s cancelled for that week. 
 
Mayor Mills said so we’d have to have the bid opening on the 13th of June. 
 
Ms. Broyles said okay, with bid opening on the 13th of June.   
 
Public Works Director Downey said I really appreciate it, and I’m sure the employees do. 
 
Information for Board: Cumberland School Taulman Mile – Street 
Public Works Director Downey said is anybody here from the School Corporation, West 
Lafayette?  The School Corporation is having their Taulman Mile on Friday, and they are 
requesting traffic barrels from the Street Department to close off a portion of the Cumberland 
Avenue.  In the past, it was the parking area on the north side of Cumberland Avenue coming 
out of the school, going up and making a turn—  I’m not sure, but usually somebody requests 
that, and I don’t see anybody here— 
 
Mayor Mills said has anyone talked to you, John [Deputy Police Chief Walker]? 
 
Deputy Police Chief Walker said there was somebody from the Schools, and also Donna 
[VanMeter, Street Department Foreman/Equipment Operator] was at the Police Department 
right before the meeting, making arrangements. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said so maybe the Board would like to close part of the road? 
 
Mr. Satterly said that came up last week. 
 
Deputy Police Chief Walker said we already have the approval for the road closure for 
Cumberland Avenue, between Salisbury and Soldiers Home Road for the run.  That was 
approved last week. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said that’s all that I need. 
 
Bid Acceptance: Milestone Contractors, L.P. – 2006 City Street Resurfacing Project –
Engineering 
City Engineer Buck said I have a couple items.  The first item I’d like to request the Board 
award the 2006 Street Resurfacing contract to Milestone Contractors.  Their bid, $386,308, is 
the amount that was substantially lower than the other bids, but they were much closer to the 
engineer’s estimate which was around $407,000, so we feel their bid is good.  We would like 
to get a contract next week to the Board and the notice to proceed.  We’d like to officially 
award them today. 
 
Mr. Satterly said I move we accept the bid for the 2006 City Street Resurfacing Project to 
Milestone Contractors in the amount of $386,308.  Motion was seconded by Ms. Broyles, and 
the vote was AYE. 
 
Mayor Mills said thank you.  We’re anxious to get started on that. 



 
 
 

BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, MAY 9, 2006, CONTINUED 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 4 of 6 

 
City Engineer Buck said yes, and that’s our LOHUT appropriation that’s going to be used to 
fund that project. 
 
New Hires: Summer Interns – Qinling Zheng and Steve Passaloukos – Engineering 
City Engineer Buck said the next item I have is a request to hire two Engineering interns for 
the summer.  Both would be starting May 15 at $11.00 per hour.  Qinling Zheng is a senior 
civil engineering student in environmental engineering.  And Steve Passaloukos is also a civil 
engineering student, and he has an associate degree in electrical and computer engineering 
technology, and is going over to the School of Civil Engineering, so he’s not really a 
sophomore, but kind of at that level as far as civil engineering goes.  So we’ve got a couple 
different ends of the spectrum.  We’re excited to hire both of them and put them to work 
quickly. 
 
Ms. Broyles said I move that we approve the hiring of two Engineering interns, both to start 
May 15, 2006, at $11.00 per hour, Qinling Zheng and Steve Passaloukos.  Motion was 
seconded by Mr. Satterly, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Mayor Mills said thank you.  We’ll look forward to having them on board. 
 
Claims 
Mayor Mills moved to approve the claims as submitted in one docket in the following amount: 

         Accounts Payable $324,107.51
Motion was seconded by Mr. Satterly, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Minutes 
Mr. Satterly said I move we approve the minutes of the May 3, 2006, Board of Works 
meeting.  Motion was seconded by Ms. Broyles, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Information for Board: Update on Salisbury Street 
Mr. Tom Gall [T.J. Gall & Associates] said I just might note that, along Salisbury Street you’ll 
begin to see Cinergy replacing power poles, trimming and/or cutting trees in the right-of-way, 
so that is essentially the beginning of construction operations, albeit CINergy’s and Verizon’s 
and Insight’s operations.  We also think that it might be possible that we’ll start actual 
construction operations on the portion of the project involving the park overlook shortly, so 
you can see that coming up. 
 
Mayor Mills said excellent.  Thank you, Tom [Mr. Gall]. 
 
Request for Temporary Parking: Wabash Landing Alley 
Ms. Wendy Watson [Property Manager for Wabash Landing] said I actually came to ask the 
Board of Works for a favor.  We are starting to have the move-in, move-out season for the 
apartment communities coming up here.  Due to the construction occurring in the alleys with 
our retail spaces, we can’t really park the moving trucks in the alcove section of the alleys.  In 
the past we have utilized the one side of our drive of our alley, next to our apartment 
elevators for the loading and unloading of our move-ins, and we have worked with the 



 
 
 

BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, MAY 9, 2006, CONTINUED 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 5 of 6 

Tippecanoe Child Care Center to utilize their parking spaces between the hours of 10:00 and 
3:00, to try to keep the trucks out of the street.  This is something that I would love to be able 
to say I’d come to you every week and tell you that we’re going to have so many trucks at 
such a particular time.  I wish it was that organized.  We can tell you that we have move-ins 
that are supposed to be there, how many move-ins are supposed to be there on the 19th of 
August, but, you know, they all kind of set their own schedules.  I do feel in the past few 
years, we’ve done our best to try to accommodate everybody, and keep at least the one lane 
open, so that’ll eliminate safety concerns.  I might ask for a little bit of leniency or permission, I 
guess, to continue to move forward this into the summer.  Obviously, if any concerns arise, I’d 
trust that all of these people would contact me. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said one concern would be if you’re doing that, it would be helpful if— 
We’ve had some small vehicles parked blocking the alley that could easily park in the delivery 
space that we’ve provided for them. 
 
Ms. Watson said okay. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said if you can get them to do that, that would help.  That way, they 
won’t be on both sides of it. 
 
Ms. Watson said I don’t think we can encourage that, because right now, the construction 
trucks are using those spaces right now, and they brought in construction dumpsters in there 
right now.  So absolutely, between that and the hotel buses, I’d be happy to do that. 
 
Deputy Police Chief Walker said I’ve had conversations with Ms. Watson, too, and my 
biggest concern I expressed was the blocking of the alleyway, and then if you have a semi 
that actually goes out into Brown Street, which we’ve had in the past, we can’t have that. 
 
Ms. Watson said and we have in the past have had this large truck.  This was an unfortunate 
situation where I was not there and it didn’t get resolved and the company got fined, and they 
should have.  But I do hope to work with them and contact Mr. and Mrs. Weida, and see if 
they can assist in placing the large trucks across the street. 
 
Mayor Mills said that would be excellent, yes.  So are you okay with this—? 
 
Deputy Police Chief Walker said I think we’re fine.  I mean, I think you just wanted to express 
your— 
 
Ms. Watson said yes, that and obviously as much as I’d like to, I’d be wasting your time and 
not being honest.  But if the City is comfortable with this, and is okay with this, to continue as 
we have in the past. 
 
Deputy Police Chief Walker said as I explained, as long as emergency vehicles can make it 
through the alleyway, there’s no blockage or safety issues on Brown Street, it’s fine. 
 



 
 
 

BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, MAY 9, 2006, CONTINUED 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 6 of 6 

Mayor Mills said right.  Thanks very much.  Thank you for coming to talk about it.  We 
appreciate it. 
 
Adjournment 
There being no further business at this time, Ms. Broyles moved for adjournment.  Motion 
was seconded by Mr. Satterly, and the vote was AYE. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
Jan H. Mills, Mayor                    Judith C. Rhodes, Clerk-Treasurer 
Presiding Officer                                    Clerk of the Board 

Internet
Text Box




